
Approved:____________ 
Approved with changes:____________ 

Effingham Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Meeting Minutes 

July 08, 2021 
Via In Person and Zoom 

 
Members Present:  Theresa Swanick (chair), Tim White (vice chair), Jim Pittman, Nate 
Williams, Mike Cahalane. 
 
Members Absent: Knute Ogren. 
 
Others Present: Nate Fogg, Mark McConkey, Rebecca Boyden (Zoning Officer), Tom Hart 
(selectman), Erik Jones, Mark Hempton, Lorie Dunne, Moselle Spiller, Matt Howe, Blair Folts, 
Sara Grasse-Crabtree and Mickala Grasse-Stockman. 
 
Mike Cahalane sworn in as an alternate member of the Zoning Board by Moderator Susan Slack. 
 
Lenny Fitzgerald informed chair he will be unable to serve as an alternate at the present time. 
 
Meeting called to order at 7:00pm. 
 
Alternate Mike Cahalane was seated for member Knute Ogren. 
 
Theresa Swanick opened the public hearing for Case #97, variance application for Meena LLC. 
 
Mark McConkey provided copies of several documents, including the tank removal closure 
report, design drawings, current UST installation permit. 
 
It was noted that the previous ZBA special exception allowed for the expansion of a non-
conforming business and converting the laundromat to a third apartment. 
 
Prince, principal of Meena LLC, owns several businesses and various LLCs of ownership. Mark 
McConkey has assisted several Pakistani owners obtain permits. Mark McConkey read a note 
from Prince, attached for the record. 
 
The application is for the same number of fuel tanks and dispensers as previously used at Boyles. 
The two underground storage tanks of fuel have multiple compartments. 
 
Jim Pittman asked why the plan noted public water supply. Mark McConkey, noted that because 
they serve the public, the water supply must be registered with the state.  The setbacks for wells 
to water supplies were discussed. 
 
Moselle Spiller of Green Mountain Conservation Group (GMCG) bought a stratified drift aquifer 
model to show how a stratified drift aquifer which has high transmissivity can spread a leak 
quickly. The ZBA also looked at an aquifer map that showed the well head protection areas.  
 
Meena property is just outside a Wellhead Protection Area for a public water supply in Ossipee. 
 



2 
 

These minutes are considered draft until approved by the board at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 
Corrections will be noted in the following month’s meeting minutes. 

Lorie Dunne read a statement from GMCG (included as an attachment to these minutes). The 
Ossipee aquifer affects 14 communities and is the largest stratified drift aquifer in NH. She urged 
the ZBA not to support the application. 
 
Blair Folts was at GMCG when they led a multi-town effort for Groundwater Protection 
Ordinances, when Effingham’s ordinance came into being. 
 
Mike Cahalane asked if the GMCG minutes from the creation of the Groundwater Protection 
Ordinance were available to be accessed. 
 
Matt Howe of GMCG noted all previous records have been kept and are available back to 2008. 
 
Sarah Grasse-Crabtree lives in and loves Effingham.  She read a prepared statement which is 
attached to these minutes. 
 
Blair Folts stated that there have been several leaks on McConkey systems. Mark McConkey 
noted that none of the issues mentioned were related to leaks of tanks. 
 
Blair Folts read a prepared statement which is included with these minutes. She noted that she 
does not believe the application meets any of the five variance criteria. 
 
Rebecca Boyden noted that the special exception allowed for the expansion of a non-conforming 
business. She believes that the conversion of the laundromat to an apartment requires a variance 
for the dwelling unit density. 
 
Blair Folts read a letter written by Corey Lane of Porter, ME, attached as part of these minutes. 
 
It was noted Blair Folts has extensive knowledge in this area, formerly with GMCG for 20 years. 
 
Rebecca Boyden affirmed DES’s One Stop website has spill data for underground storage tanks. 
 
Mark McConkey reviewed some of the local incidents with USTs. Any tank incident was with a 
single wall tank. Fuel with ethanol is cleaned with air, not water. He is not making an excuse for 
the new owners of the property, but they believed that they had all of the permits that they 
needed before they hired any contractors. 
 
Theresa Swanick noted that the owners proceeded at their own risk and were aware of the risk. 
 
Rebecca Boyden noted that there are often multiple levels of regulations, and many people 
beginning a project in town come to meet with her.  No one came to discuss the local process 
with her on this project. 
 
Matt Howe noted that Corey Lane asked about notifying other towns. Theresa Swanick noted 
that the planning board has used regional impact in a recent case. She suggested regional impact 
letter is not required but could be a courtesy. 



3 
 

These minutes are considered draft until approved by the board at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 
Corrections will be noted in the following month’s meeting minutes. 

Mike Cahalane noted we should decide on regional impact. Rebecca Boyden read the criteria for 
considering regional impact. Mike Cahalane noted he doesn’t expect there to be regional impact. 
 
Lorie Dunne and Mark Hempton noted that spills happen at stations. Large gas companies 
usually budget for liabilities from gas stations. 
 
Tim White noted that a DES factsheet states that spills typically go 295 feet and that the Ossipee 
town line is closer than that distance. 
 
Mike Cahalane noted that input from regional impact will not affect the ZBA’s ability to make 
the decision. Jim Pittman noted that regional impact is not likely to affect the ZBA decision. 
 
Nate Williams noted that other new replacement tanks have been installed in the aquifer overlay 
zone in other towns. He is not sure about regional impact.  
 
Jim Pittman noted that he does not believe that the size of this project rises to the level of 
regional impact. 
 
Theresa Swanick noted that there is too much to review to finish the case this evening, possibly 
allowing time to notice other towns, even if not formally undertaking a Regional Impact process. 
 
Mike Cahalane does not believe the ZBA needs to use regional impact for this case. 
 
Jim Pittman noted that the ZBA needs to continue this hearing and asked if they should close the 
public input or not prior to continuing the hearing. There was no decision to close public input. 
 
Mike Cahalane made a motion to declare regional impact. Tim White seconded the motion.  
A vote was taken; the motion failed with a vote of 1-3-1 with Theresa Swanick abstaining. 
 
Mike Cahalane motioned to continue the public hearing to Tuesday, July 20th, at 6:00pm at 
town offices.  Jim Pittman seconded the motion.  A vote was taken; the motion passed 5-0. 
 
The Closure Report will be forwarded to the ZBA members for review. 
   
Minutes: 
The ZBA reviewed the minutes of the meeting of June 29, 2021.   
Theresa Swanick made motion to approve the minutes from June 29, 2021, as amended.  
Mike Cahalane seconded the motion.  A vote was taken, and the motion passed 5-0. 
 
Next Meeting: July 20, 2021, at 6:00pm in person. 
 
Adjournment: 
Mike Cahalane motioned to adjourn the meeting.  Theresa Swanick seconded the motion.  
A vote was taken, and the motion passed 5-0. The meeting adjourned at 9:25pm. 






















